
 

Kelso City Council Agenda 
Regular Meeting, 6:00 pm 

June 21, 2016 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

203 South Pacific 
Kelso, WA  98626 

 
 

                                **Special accommodations for the handicapped and hearing impaired are available 
 by special arrangement through the City Clerk’s Office at 360-423-0900** 

 

 
 
Roll Call to Council Members: 

 
 

Invocation: 
Pastor Chris Davis from Abundant Life Nazarene 

  
 
1. Approve Minutes: 

1.1. June 7, 2016 – Regular Meeting 
 
 
2. Public Hearings: 

2.1. Declare Surplus of City Property 
2.2. 2016 HOME Project Allocations 

2.2.1. Council Action 
 

 
3. Consent Item: 

3.1. Auditing of Accounts 
 

 
4. Citizen Business: 
 

 
5. Council Business: 

5.1. Contract Award – Talley Way Overlay Construction Contract  
5.2. Contract Award – Yew Street Project Construction Contract 
5.3. Contract Award – Yew Street Project Consultant Services  
5.4. Contract Award – Talley Way Perimeter Fence and Rotating Beacon Replacement 

Projects 
5.5. Loan Agreement – Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan 

 
 



 

Kelso City Council Agenda 
Regular Meeting, 6:00 pm 

June 21, 2016 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

203 South Pacific 
Kelso, WA  98626 

 
 
 
6. Action/Motion Items: 

6.1. Resolution 
6.1.1. Declare Surplus of Property 

 
 

Other Items: 
 City Manager Report 
 Staff/Dept Head Reports 
 Council Reports 
 Other Business 
 Executive Session 



KELSO CITY COUNCIL                                                                              June 7, 2016 
6:00 P.M.                                                                                       REGULAR MEETING 
 
Pastor Mark Schmutz, from Abundant Life Nazarene Church, gave the invocation.  
Mayor David Futcher led the flag salute.  Mayor Futcher called the Regular Meeting of 
the Kelso City Council to order.   Councilmembers in attendance were David Futcher, 
Nancy Malone, Larry Alexander, Todd McDaniel, Rick Roberson, and Jim Hill.  
Councilmember Kim Lefebvre was absent. 
 
Minutes:  Upon motion by Councilmember Alexander, seconded by Councilmember 
McDaniel, ‘Approve the Minutes of the May 17, 2016 Regular Meeting,’ motion carried, 
all voting yes. 
 
Council Business Item moved forward:  
 
Millennium Bulk Terminals Coal Export Facility Draft EIS Comments:  Upon 
motion by Councilmember Hill, seconded by Councilmember Roberson, ‘Authorize the 
Mayor to sign a letter of support for the process of moving forward with the Millennium 
Bulk Terminals Coal Export Facility.’  Ted Sprague, President of the Cowlitz Economic 
Development Council, spoke in support of the process moving forward.  Four citizens 
from the audience spoke in favor of the process moving forward and eight citizens spoke 
against it. Mayor Futcher read aloud the draft letter.  Lengthy discussion followed.  
Councilmember Hill made a motion to table this item to discuss at a later date.  Motion 
failed due to lack of a second.  Mayor Futcher reiterated the original motion.  
Councilmember Hill voted yes.  Councilmembers Futcher, Alexander, McDaniel, 
Roberson, and Malone voted no.  Motion failed, 1 to 5.   
 
PROCLAMATION: 
 
Mayor Futcher read a proclamation declaring June 2016 as “General Aviation 
Appreciation Month” in the City of Kelso.  City Manager Steve Taylor accepted the 
proclamation. 
 
PRESENTATIONS: 
 
Stormwater and Low Impact Development (LID) Code Update:  Otak Consultant 
Trista Kobluskie provided an informative presentation on the City’s LID code update.   
The current permit requires an update of the City’s codes and practices. 
 
LED Streetlight Conversion:  Ameresco Inc. Project Manager Mike Pacella provided an 
end-of-project presentation on the conversion of city streetlights to LEDs. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

1. Contract Award:  2016 Intersection Reconstruction Project – Advanced 
Excavating Specialists 



 
Kelso City Council                               -2-                                    6/7/16 Regular Meeting 
 
Upon motion by Councilmember Roberson, seconded by Councilmember Hill, ‘Approve 
the Consent Agenda.’ Councilmembers Futcher, Alexander, McDaniel, Roberson, and 
Hill voted yes.  Councilmember Malone voted no.  Motion passed, 5 to 1. 
 
CITIZEN BUSINESS: 
 
Steven Dahl, owner of a property management business in the community, spoke about 
the ordinance relating to the responsibility for the maintenance and costs of side sewers.    
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS: 
 
Longview Public Library Reciprocal Agreement:  Upon motion by Councilmember 
McDaniel, seconded by Councilmember Malone, ‘Approve the Renewal of the Longview 
Public Library Reciprocal Agreement.’  Discussion followed.  Motion passed, all voting 
yes. 
 
MOTION ITEMS:         
 
Ordinance No. 16-3874 – Budget Amendment:  The Deputy Clerk read the proposed 
ordinance by title only.  Upon motion by Councilmember McDaniel, seconded by 
Councilmember Roberson, ‘Adopt Ordinance No. 16-3874, ‘AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY OF KELSO RELATING TO PUBLIC EXPENDITURES AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF RCW 35A.34.150 FIXING THE 
AMOUNT OF MONEY REQUIRED TO MEET SUCH EMERGENCIES AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF MONEY NOT PROVIDED FOR IN THE 
2015-2016 BIENNIAL BUDGET OF THE CITY.’ Discussion followed.  
Councilmember Futcher, Alexander, McDaniel, Roberson, and Hill voted yes.  
Councilmember Malone voted no.  Motion passed, 5 to 1. 
     
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
Steve Taylor:   1) Announced that the City of Kelso earned the Well City Award from 
the Association of Washington Cities (AWC) for the sixth consecutive year.  He 
acknowledged that the Wellness Committee members’ participation makes a healthier 
and happier workforce. 2) Commented that he would be attending the Annual AWC 
Conference in Everett on June 21st-24th so he will not be at the next regular council 
meeting. He encouraged councilmembers to consider attending the conference.  3) 
Provided an update on the Charter Review Committee. He commented that they would 
like to schedule a special meeting on June 28.  After discussion, the Council directed staff 
to schedule a special council meeting for June 28, 2016. 
 
STAFF REPORT: 
 



 
Kelso City Council                               -3-                                    6/7/16 Regular Meeting 
 
Finance Director/City Clerk Brian Butterfield: Provided a status update on the annual 
city audit. 
 
COUNCIL REPORTS: 
 
Todd McDaniel:  Commented that the first meeting of the Three Rivers Regional 
Wastewater Authority Governing Board will be June 8, 2016. 
 
Rick Roberson:  No report. 
 
Jim Hill:  Commented that the 911 Communications Center and the City Charter Review 
Committee both deserve a show of appreciation for their hard work and efforts. 
 
Larry Alexander:  Commented that he agreed that the 911 Communication Center 
deserved recognition for the good work that they do. 
 
Nancy Malone:  Announced that she would be awarding the Kelso Eagles Robert Larson 
Scholarship to a Kelso High School student tomorrow evening at the high school. 
 
David Futcher:   He commented that he appreciated the appropriate manner of all who 
addressed the council this evening.  
 
There being no further business, Mayor Futcher adjourned the meeting at 7:50 p.m. 
 
 
  
 
      ____________________________________ 
                                 MAYOR 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
                            CITY CLERK 



 
AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Business of the City of Kelso 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:    

PUBLIC HEARING DECLARING CITY 
OWNED PROPERTY, PARCELS 24337 
AND 24334 AS SURPLUS AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
CONVEY SUCH PARCELS TO THE DAVIS 
TERRACE WATER ASSOCIATION 

 
PRESENTED BY:   
Janean Parker 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: ____Legal__________________ 
 
For Agenda of: ____June, 21, 2016____________ 
 
Cost of Item:   
 
City Manager:  Stephen Taylor   
 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM ATTACHMENTS:    
All relevant documents are attached to the proposed resolution later on the agenda. 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
The City has been negotiating an agreement for the purchase and sale of water with the Davis Terrace 
Water Assocation (DTWA).  The DTWA owns a reservoir on City owned property.  The City has not 
been able to establish an easement or other documentation authorizing use of the property.  The DTWA 
would like to own the underlying property on which the reservoir is located and the City has no other 
uses for that property.  The City would also reduce its liability exposure by disposing of the property. 
RCW 35.94.040 requires a resolution surplussing the property and a public hearing and a statement of 
the fair market value or consideration to be paid for any property originally acquired for utitlity 
purposes.  Staff has researched the assessed value of the parcels from the Cowlitz County Assessor and 
determined that $2,300.00 is a reasonable fair market value for the property.   
 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
Sale price of $2,300. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
 



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:    
Public Hearing To Allocate 2016 HOME Program 
Grant Funding 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
 Adam Trimble, City of Longview 
Planner/Grant Coordinator   

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin:  Community Development   
 
For Agenda of: June 21, 2016_________________  
 
Cost of Item:______________________________ 
 
City Manager: Steve Taylor__________________ 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
 
Presentation on 2016 project proposals 
Four applications for 2016 HOME funding 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
This public hearing is to allocate 2016 HOME Investment Partnership Program funding and designate the 2016 
Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO). The Public Hearing will be held to review and 
consider affordable housing projects submitted for funding and receive public comment for allocations. 
Four (4) HOME project applications have been received. All project designs have been made available for 
Council review. Public Review has been made available at the Community 
Development Office and on the City's HOME Website. 
 
Funding for 2016 for the Longview-Kelso HOME Consortium is at $244,413 of which Kelso’s portion is 
$42,182 plus $89,474.60 (includes unallocated amount from 2015 and re-allocation from 2013 project), totaling 
$132,286.60.  
 
The Council may take action to allocate funding following the Public Hearing or choose to bring back for 
further consideration at a futcher council meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION(S):  
 

1. Motion to allocate 2016 HOME program funding to applicants in amounts determined by the City 
Council. 

 
2. Motion to designate Lower Columbia CAP as the 2016 CHDO   



 
The 2016 HOME Projects Are: 
Consortium Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) Request for Funding 
CHDO 5% Operating Costs: 

To support the Consortium’s Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) Lower 
Columbia Community Action Program (Housing and Energy Division) operating and capacity building 
costs including salaries and benefits, training, department pro-rated cost allocations (rent, phone, etc.), 
equipment, materials, supplies and tools.  The amount will be 5% of the 2016 HOME allocation. 
 
Lower Columbia Community Action Program $12,220.65  

*Requires approval from Consortium Partners (Longview and Kelso City Councils) 
 
2016 Kelso HOME Project Summaries  
Amount Available:  $132,286.60         Amount Requested:  $305,571              
 

• Kelso Roof Replacements, Health & Safety and Revitalization Project – replacement of roofs and 
revitalization of approximately 7 homes owned/rented by low-income residents to a standard of 
eligibility for separate weatherization assistance. Further revitalization including painting and 
landscaping will be coordinated with volunteers. 
Lower Columbia Community Action Program $132, 581  

 
• Foundation for the Challenged – Rehabilitate one home for 3 developmentally disabled adults to reside 

in. 
Life Works sponsored through Foundation for the Challenged $42,581 

 
• Homeless Recovery Rental Assistance – Provide tenant based rental assistance for a minimum of 10 

homeless households. Community House/CORE Health and Emergency Support Shelter will select 
recipients based upon a housing readiness model. Recipients will receive 1- year of ongoing case 
management from a separate source. 
Community House on Broadway $40,000 

 
• Columbia and Chinook Apartments Property Improvement – upgrade two apartment buildings providing 

housing for extremely low income residents including new appliances, flooring, paint and furnishings in 
units and common areas.  
Kelso Housing Authority $90,409 

 

























































Kelso tongv1ew 
Cities Working Together 

City of Longview/City of Kelso 

HOME Participating Jurisdiction 
Project Design Proposal - 2016 

Applicant: Community House on Broadway Contact Person: Frank Morrison 
Title: Executive Director Title: same -=...=.;..;....;..:.-=------------
Address : 1105 Broadway Longview. WA 98632Address:_-=s=am'-'-'-=e _______ _ 

Phone: 360-425-8679 Phone: same 
~~~----~~~~~~ 

Fax: 360-425-5949 Fax: same 
-=~'-'-=------------

E -ma i I: frankm@choblv.org E-mail: __ ~s~am~e _____ _ 

Non-Profit Status: NO_ Yes X IRS Tax Identification Number 94-3067129 

loca.~io n: ~Longview Kelso 

Project Title: Homeless Recovery Tennant Based Rental Assistance 

HOME Fund ing Requested: $ __ 40~0_0_0 _____ _ 

Project Description 
1. Give a brief summary of your project (under 101 words): 

This project will target a minimum of 10 homeless households who are not otherwise able to pay for 

housing rental costs due to their financial limitations. Community House/CORE Health will select 

recipients for these funds based upon a housing readiness model. This housing assistance will be granted 

to Community House residents who have worked diligently on their case managed Action Plan and 

CORE Health clients selected from the general public who have met their treatment goals. In addition, 

households from the Emergency Support Shelter will be allowed to access these funds based upon the 

request of their advocates. These dollars will be used to supplement households in an income bracket 

(below 80% AMI) to reduce the cost burden of housing. CHOB case management team and 

administration will be responsible to oversee the carrying out of this project in its entirety. Finally, the 

recipients of this program will be provided with 1-year of ongoing case management after they have 

found housing. 

2. Describe the project noting the problem(s) or opportunity(s) that will be addressed. 

The tenant based rental assistance project will primarily target homeless households that had a previous 

residency in Kelso. Data shows that CHOB serves approximately 50-60 households per year who had a 

previous residency in the City of Kelso. The goal of the project would be to help the household get 

rehoused in Kelso. If no housing options were available in that city than other housing locations would 

be sought after. Furthermore, CHOB demographics show that average household comes from extremely 

low income brackets coupled with multiple barriers to housing. These major barriers typically are: 

HOM E Program Longview - Kel so HOME Consortium 

Questions? Technical Assistance? Contact Adam Trimble at 360.442.5092, or by e-mail at: adamt@mylongview.com 

l QUAlHOUl!NQ 
0,,0llTUHITY 



mental health instability, poor rental history, evictions, poor credit, and criminal history. 

Cost burden is a common problem among low income renters. This leads to eviction as renters typically 

pay greater than 50% of their income on housing or housing related costs. CHOB data indicates that 

29% of homeless individuals and families that enter the shelter lost their housing due eviction. 

One of the problems that Community House residents have encountered in 2015 is a lack ofrental 

assistance funding available. Lower Columbia CAP is limited in the number of households they can 

Serve. Coordinated Entry and Assessment (CEASE) has changed their selection criteria for Rapid 

Rehousing assistance. Currently to receive this assistance the household must be assessed as the most 

vulnerable. Unfortunately, many Community House residents because of their living status (i.e. in a 

homeless shelter) do not meet the criteria to be placed in the most vulnerable homeless category. This 

handcuffs many of the families that are in crisis and have the greatest need of housing which further 

creates a sense of hopelessness and depression. 

The opportunity is that this project will provide funds for a minimum of 10 homeless family households 

to help pay a portion of first and last month's rent, utility deposit, security deposits, and/or a portion of 

rental costs for the recipients of this program. 

3. List the specific HOME objective information from the "5 year Strategic Plan" within the 

2014-2018 Longview-Kelso Consolidated Plan. (See website information under Instructions). 

Consolidated Plan Objective Code and Number: AP-55 Affordable Housing 91.420, 91.220(g) 

Consolidated Plan Objective Title: Affordable Housing · 

Consolidated Plan Objective Proposed Accomplishments & Outcomes: Homeless households to be 

supported through rent assistance 

Project Readiness 
4. Describe what specific steps need to be completed before the project will be ready to proceed? 

(Projects must be under construction within 12 months of signing your HOME Contract or funding will 

be deobligated.) 

Community House on Broadway is operational and has all of the elements necessary to begin the project 

when funding is made available. Our professional case management team coupled with our Mental 

Health professionals from CORE Health will be able to select high needs, vulnerable households from 

the pool of clients at the shelter. Emergency Support Shelter will also have opportunity to use these 

funds for the domestic violence clients that they serve. 

Final steps include: 
Finalize a contract with Longview-Kelso. 
Establish policies and procedures based upon the program. 

o Market the program 

1-IOME Program Longview- Kel so 1-IOME Consortium 2 

Quest ions? Techn ical Ass istance? Contact Adam Trimble at 360.442.5092, or by e-mail at: adamt@mylongview.com 

EQUAL HOUSINO 
OPPORTUN I TY 



0 Select clients 
o Work with local landlords to secure housing 

5. Please list start and completion date by Month, Day and Year: 

Complete the "Project Timeline" (included at the end of this application) detailing project tasks 

and dates. This will be a part of your contract goals should your project be selected. 

Project Start Date (mm-dd-yyyy) 10/1/2016 

Proj ect Completion Date (mm-dd-yyyy) 9/30/2017 

Probiem Impact and Severity 
6. How will this project increase housing affordability for rentals or home ownership? What 

reductions in cost of rent or a mortgage would be realized? What rents will you charge for each 

one, two, and three bedroom when the project is complete? (Please detail from your attached 

ProlFor ma.) 

When fonding is made available, those who are selected from the homeless population at Community 

House and Emergency Support Shelter will receive the TBRA assistance which will reduce the cost 

burden ofrent to less than 30% of their monthly income. For example, those that are working full-time 

low wage jobs will not be required to pay more than 30% of their monthly income on rent. This will 

make housing for our clients affordable and less expensive giving them a stable housing situation. In 

addition, Community House will provide intensive case manage the clients for up to one year after they 

move into housing. 

7. How does this housing project create a better living environment for residents? Have local, 

county, or state authorities noted the severity of the problem? Note building, public health or/and 

safety issues. 

The homeless households who are the recipients of this assistance, a stable housing situation will be 

provided. Furthermore, a safe and affordable housing situation will make the likelihood of long-term 

success and self-sufficiency for the household much greater. The goal of this project is to reduce 

homeless recidivism and the time families spend in homelessness. CHOB case management will assist 

the household receiving the assistance with in home case management along with potential mental 

health peer support. The goal of the case manager/peer support will be to advocate for, provide support 

to, and ensure the household is receiving the services necessary to retain their housing. The goal of the 

peer support is to make sure the clients stay engaged with mental health services and follow the 
treatment goals of the therapist. 

HOME Program Longview- Kelso HOME Consortium 3 

Questions? Technical Assistance? Contact Adam Trimble at 360.442.5092, or by e-mail at: adamt@mylongview.com 

EOUAL HOUSING 
OPPORTUtllTY 



The 201 4-2018 Consolidated Plan explains the need for the homeless to have access to safe and 

affordable housing. 

8. List similar projects or programs your agency has, and other agencies have, in place to address 

this problem in the community. List agencies, funding sources and amounts. List the number of 

families housed under each of these programs. 

Community House on Broadway was recently awarded funding from the City of Longview to manage a 

TBRA program in the amount of $80,000. CHOB also has a case management team and professional 

mental health outpatient services that will provide additional support for the service recipients of this 

proJ eci:. 

Longview Housing Authority provides CHOB with 5% of section-8 vouchers as they become available. 

Lower Columbia CAP -rapid rehousing 274,000 for 2016 

Project Development 
9. lD>id you attempt to collaborate the development of this project with other agencies? Which 

agencies were contacted and what was the outcome? 

Community House on Broadway will be grant access to the Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA) 

with the Emergency Support Shelter clients. Community House administration has been in contact with 

the Emergency Support Shelter about the opportunity. There has also been interest from private parties 

to partner with Community House to help locate, develop, and rehabilitate multiple housing units for 

low income renters in this community as well . 

10. How do you propose to solve the problem? Please be specific, itemizing the various tasks you 

wm m111ertake. 

Community House case managers will determine the selection criteria for the clients that receive this 

assistance based upon the research of Ralph da Costa Nunez the president and CEO of the Institute of 

Children, Pove1iy, and Homelessness. According to Nunez, the one-size fits all approach of Housing 

First is destined to fail as housing is not the only issue that the homeless struggle with. High recidivism 

rates prove the ineffectiveness of the Housing First approach. The Community House program is in a 

tremendous position to select potential candidates that would succeed if they had this assistance. The 

staff of the Community House is able to gauge the overall stability of the household. We offer a full 

range of supportive services including case management, mental health, and a therapeutic afterschool 

program that are all designed to aid the households recovery. At the Community House, the residents are 

given an individualized case managed Action Plan. The staff develops a personal relationship with the 

client as they navigate the social services and complete their goals. The client typically engages in 

HOME Program Longview- Kelso I-JOM E Consortium 4 

Questions? Technical Ass istance? Contact Adam Trimble at 360.442.5092, or by e-mail at: adamt@mylongview.com 

EOUAL HOUSlt-jO 
OPPOR TU NIT Y 



recovery based programs, saves income, and engages in job training or education while they stay at 

Community House. The accountability, structure, and hand-up approach that CHOB has in place will 

allow us to offer this pilot project housing assistance to family households who are in the best position to 

succeed with the housing assistance. 

11. Lisli: all persons who would be involved during the development of this project and describe 

their- project responsibilities. (Include names, titles, phone and e-mail.) (Responsibilities should 

inchlde grant administration, project manager, developing partnerships, acquisition, overseeing 

constn.llction, maintaining records, client intake and eligibility, etc.) 

Fran( Morrison, Executive Director Community House on Broadway/CORE Health, (360) 355-5660, 

frankm@cho blv .org 
Responsibilities: grant administrator, oversee project 

Jim Murphy, Operations Manager Community House on Broadway, (360) 560-8500, jimm@choblv.org 

Responsibilities: maintaining records, confirming eligibility, reporting outcomes 

Cameron Carson, Operations Manager CORE Health, (360) 270-4587, cameronc@choblv.org 

Responsibilities: maintaining records, confirming eligibility, reporting outcomes 

Project Operation 
12. Are you partner ing with other organizations or businesses in this project? Will you have 

confraicts for supportive services? What roles will each organization or business play after the 

project is completed? Please submit letters from partnering agencies and/or businesses as 

su1ppoirting documentation. 

Community House will work with the staff at the Emergency Support Shelter to ensure that ESS clients 

are gi·ven access to these funds. After the completion of the project, mental health peer support services 

and other forms of outpatient counseling may be provided per the client's discretion. The possible 

private parties involved will help maintain the properties for ongoing support. 

13. Lis~ an persons involved in the operation of this project when completed and describe their 

respousibilities. (Include names, titles, phone and e-mail.) (Responsibilities should include case 

management, day-to-day management, rent schedules for units, annual renter income review, 

partnerships in serving renters, etc., apartment management, and project owner.) 

im ML1rphy, Operations Manager Community House on Broadway, (360) 560-8500, jimm@choblv.org 

Respor1sibilities : maintaining records, confirming eligibility 

Tim T1vey, Case Management Community House on Broadway, (360) 425-8679, timt@choblv.org 

Responsibilities: maintaining case management records, intake, eligibility, housing locator, case 

management 

HOME Program Longview- Kel so HOME Consortium 5 

Questions? Techn ical Assistance? Contact Adam Trimble at 360.442.5092, or by e-mail at: adamt@mylongview.com 

EQUAL HOUSIHO 
OPPORTUNIT Y 



Suzanne Gosch, Lead Peer Support Counselor CORE Health, (360) 200-5419, suzanneg@choblv.org 

Responsibilities: maintain client outreach and engagement, ensuring the clients receive support services 

to maintain stable housing. 

14. Complete the Rental or Ownership Proforma and Marketing Plan for 5 units or over 
(provided separately.) 
Summarize your marketing/public outreach that you will you provide to inform the general 
community of this project? (Review the Marketing Plan information under the Underwriting 
Policies) 

Community House on Broadway case management team will seek out and make known the 

opportunities of the assistance to those that reside at the CHOB homeless recovery center. CORE Health 

will seek out and make known the opportunities of the assistance to the clients who choose to receive 

these services. In addition, the opportunity will be made available to clients of the Emergency Support 

Shelter. 

15. D~scribe your selection process for applicants to participate? How will disabled applicants be 
able to participate? 

Community House on Broadway (CHOB) will base the policy of determining eligible applicants using 

the research of Ralph da Costa Nunez. Nunez research supports the idea that families who become 

homeless due to a housing problem ought to be the first families that receive housing assistance. For 

example, families that experienced a medical emergency, job loss, or other short term crisis would be of 

the highest priority to get rehoused. Families that have significant housing barriers such as lack of job 

skills, ri1ental health, substance abuse history, domestic violence, etc would be selected based upon 

meeting the recovery goals they develop with their case manager. Through CHOB case management 

interview sessions, staff will check client's history, debt, background information along with their 

current barriers that may have an impact to their success. 

Eligible recipients will need to be in good standing with the CHOB program and with other recovery 

organi.;:ations in this community. The household must have a verifiable plan in place that will address 

theif Ieng term success after the short term subsidy has ended. The household must give CHOB 

permission to communicate with landlords during the assessment and for up to one year following the 

assistance to ensure and document success. The household will need to have verifiable, stable income 

and/or employment in Cowlitz County. The household will not have income exceeding the program 

requirements of greater than 80% of AMI. Finally, selected clients will be city of Kelso or Longview 

citizeri.). 

Disabled applicants will be granted equal opportunity to this program. 

·-·- --· -- ----------------- ------ ---- ----------

HO ME Program Longview- Kelso HOM E Consortium 6 

Questions? Technical Assistance? Contact Adam Trimble at 360.442.5092, or by e-mail at: adamt@mylongview.com 

EQUAL llOUSll/Q 
OPPORT UN ITY 



16. What other short-term and long-term outcomes will result from the project? 

The short term goals of this project is to meet the housing needs of at least ten ( 10) Community House 

on Broadway/CORE Health and Emergency Support Shelter households. Staff will work diligently to 

serve more than the 10 households as funds are stretched to their capacity. This will solve the recipients 

housing crisis and give them an advantaged opportunity to maintain self-sufficiency. Community House 

serves between 80-100 family households on an annual basis. 

The long term goals will be the stabilization of the household's health, recovery, finances, and housing 

that will help their integration into the community as a stably housed and self-sufficient household. 

17. What activities would still need to be undertaken after the project is completed in order for 

the p.-oblem to be fuHy addressed? Quantify where possible. 

There will likely be a continued need for some types of supportive services to the households selected 

for this program. Programs including but are not limited to: ongoing case management, mental health 

treatment, substance abuse recovery services, continued education, and life skill enhancement. It will be 

the goal of the case manager to ensure that the client is connected to these services and the necessary 

social support structures are developed while they benefit from the assistance. 

CHOB does foresee a need for this assistance if family homelessness remains a problem in Cowlitz 

County. 

Households Benefiting 
rn. Wlhat is the number of low-income households that will benefit from this project? 
Use c1mrrent year HUD Income Limits for family size. 

At or below 80% of Median Income: 10 -------
At or below 50% of Median Income: ----
1H or below 30% of Median Income: ----

TOTAJL Number of Households: 10 _ __...........__ __ 

Bud21§-jf 
19. Explain why HOME funds are appropriate for your project. If this application is for a 

program currently :receiving HOME funding, discuss what action you have taken and what other 

funding sources have been investigated in the last 12 months to reduce your organization's 

dependence on City of Longview (or City of Kelso) HOME funds. 

HOML :i:'unds are appropriate for Tenant Based Rental Assistance Projects such as this. No other funding 

source serves this project. 

Community House is new to applying for HOME funds and will continue to investigate various avenues 

and fundi ng_ sources to assist its clients of getting housing support. 

HOME Program Longview- Kelso HOME Consortium 7 

Questions? Technical Assistance? Contact Adam Trimble at 360.442.5092, or by e-mail at: adamt@mylongview.com 

EQUAL HOUSltlO 
OPPOR TUNITY 



20. What agency funding will you commit to this project? If none, why not? (A 25% match of 

non-federal funding is desired.) 

Community House on Broadway will commit to funds for case management services for the ten (10) 

households that receive the assistance. This funding will come directly from the Community House 

general operating fund. We anticipate a cost of $10,000 for in home case management and mileage 

expense. 

21. Hone o:r more funding sources listed below is not realized, what impact would this have on 

you:r project? Explain what changes would be considered to its scope or design, including the 

ir.o.umbe:r o:f families housed, structure(s) constructed, delays in construction start date, etc. and 

whether your project would exist without HOME funding. 

If HOME dollars are not provided, this project will not function at any capacity. 

22. Complete and attach the separate HOME Budget Form. 
Complete the budget form showing all sources and uses of funds related to your project. 

23. Sources and Uses Fund Statement I Budget Form Narrative 

a. Pk~<se 1ist all funding sources, intended uses, and amounts from your budget form. 

Men:itify each source as Federal, State, Local, or Private. 

b. Identify which sources are proposed and which sources are committed. 

c. §up porting Documentation: List and attach "Sources of Funds" supporting documentation 

noted under Question #25. 

HOM E Program Longv iew- Kelso HOM E Consortium 8 

Questions? Technical Ass istance? Contact Adam Trimble at 360.442.5092, or by e-mail at: adamt@mylongview.com 

EQUAL HOUSINQ 
OP POR TUN IT Y 



d. Supporting Documentation: List and attach "Uses of Funds" supporting documentation noted 

under Question #25. 

24. Please list the amount of private, local, and State (non-federal) matching funds which will be 

designated towards the 25% match per HOME categories below: 

$ A. Cash Contributions 
$ B. Forgone, Taxes, Fees and Charge 
$ C. Donated Land or Other Real Property 

$ D. On Site and Off-Site Infrastructure 
$ E 1 Donated Site Preparation 
$ E 2 Donated Construction Material 
$ E 3 Donated Labor (other than homeowner) : Number or hours __ times $10 per hour 

$ E l Sweat Equity (homeowner only): Number or hours times $10 per hour 

$ F. Proceeds from Affordable Housing Bonds 

$1 O,OOO _ _ G. Supportive Services - Type Case management, mileage for home visits, and housing 

support 
$ _ ____ G 1 Homebuyer Counseling Services 
$ _ ____ Estimated/Unknown at this time. Type: _______________ _ 

HOME Program Longv iew- Kelso HOME Consortium 9 

Questions? Techn ical Ass istance? Contact Adam Trimble at 360.442.5092, or by e-mail at: adamt@mylongview.com 

EQUAL HOUSING 
OPPORTUNITY 



Attachments 

25. Required Attachments 
D Project Timeline (Note: Funding is available in November.following project submittal. Please 

p lan accordingly.) 
D Project Budget (Note: Show all.funding sources and note ?[they are committed or not 

committed. List date when commitment will be confirmed.) 

D Detailed Cost Estimates (Specific costs for project itemized to show project cost analysis.) 

D Project Documentation (See below) 

D HOME Performa: Rental or Homeowner Affordability 
D Market Analysis (separate form) 
D Marketing Plan (as described in the Underwriting Policies and Procedures.) 

D eveloper Development Capacity Certification 
D Agency Financial Audit by e-mail (Most current independent audit.) 

Pro ject Documentation to support your project. (Provide in order listed. Staff may limit the 

number oJf documents to the most important for Council to base its decision.) 

•> Sou rces of Funds 
I. Include commitment letters with all terms and conditions for all mortgages, loans, grants, subordination 

agreements, private fundraising, bridge (interim) loans and investment tax credits (historical low-income, if 

applicable); 
2. Provide a formal Certification letter signed by the Agency Director or Owner listing the amounts and type 

of all governmental assistance (Federal, State, and Local) which will be used in this project. 

3. If you (the applicant) are a paitnership, or will enter into a partnership to undertake this project (including 

services) provide a copy of the partnership agreement, which will indicate the cash contributions by the 

general partner(s) and/or limited partner(s) . 

0 Uses of Funds 
1. Earnest money agreement, option or closing statement for land and/or building(s); 

2. Construction cost estimate 
3. Construction contract or preliminary (bids) 
4. Agreements governing the various reserves which are capitalized at closing (to verify that the reserves 

cannot be withdrawn later as fees or distributions.) 
5. Appraisal (to substantiate the value of the land and the value of the property after rehabilitation or the 

structure being built) 
6. If low-income tax credits are utilized, provide documentation on the syndication costs (legal, accounting, 

tax opinion, etc.) from the organization/individuals who will syndicate and sell the offering to ensure that 

the project can support the fees necessary to syndicate/fund the project. All assumptions should be verified 

in the supporting documentation. 

"' Maps, architectural renderings and elevations, floor plans 

o Surveys and other professional rep01ts 

o Letters from local, state, or federal agencies directing the repair or creation of a specific housing project 

o Letters attesting to the subject problem 

o Letters of support 

'' Current news artic les 
o Engineering, soil s, or environmental reports 

HOME Prngram Longview- Kelso HOME Consortium JO 

Question ~? Technical Assistance? Contact Adam Trimble at 360.442.5092, or by e-mail at: adamt@mylongview.com 

EQUAL HOUSINO 
O PP ORTUt/IT Y 



eline 

Detai~ Tasks for Project Start Date Completion 
Date 

Month Dav Year Month Dav Year 

Funds availab le t o beq in project 10/1/2016 9/30/2017 
CHOB-ESS selects eligible recipients 10/1/2016 9/30/2017 
CHOB discovers, educates, and makes 10/1/2016 9/30/2017 
agreement with local landlords about 
TBRA proqram 
CHOB and TBRA recipient find a safe, 10/1/201 6 12/31/2016 
su itable hous inq environment 
TBRA recipient and land lord sign lease 10/1/2016 12/31/2016 
aqreement 
CHOB provides case management to 10/1/2016 9/ 30/2017 
recio ient for 1 year _ , 

CHOB maintains record fo r reporting 
-

10/ 1/ 2016 9/30/2017 

- -

t-----

r----

HOME Program Longv iew- Kelso HOM E Consortium 11 

Questi ons? Techn ical Ass istance? Contact Adam Trimble at 360.442.5092, or by e-mail at: adamt@mylongview.com 

~OUAL HOUSIHQ 
OPPORT UNIT Y 



Marketing Plan: A marketing plan shall be completed to show how the project will be marketed 

publ ica lly to Longview and/or Kelso residents through the public media, professional realtor 

or/ano real estate marketing staff for at least 90 days or until the unit(s) are fully sold/rented. 

The advertising methods used to reach buyers/renters, both paid and free, and direct 
promotion through local organizations, stakeholders and social media can be used. The 

message to buyers should note that the value/sales ore rental price is competitive and the 

home's features fit the target buyer or renter. The agency must follow its marketing plan and 

provide documentation of its public marketing effort prior to selecting its recipient(s.) 

HOME Program Longview- Kel so HOME Consortium 12 

Questions? Technical Assistance? Contact Adam Trimble at 360.442.5092, or by e-mail at: adamt@mylongview.com 

EQUAL HOUSING 
OPPORTUNIT Y 



Deve~opment Capacity Certification 

Project Name: 
Address : 
City: 

Owner, Developer, Sponsor (circle or bold all that apply) 
Rental, Homeownership, Lease-to-Own, Self-Help (circle or bold one) 
New Construction or Rehabilitation (circle 1or bold one) 

Pre-development Start Date ________ _________ _ 

Construction Start Date 
--------------------~ 

Expected Construction Completion Date ______________ _ __ _ 

Total Project Units: _ _ _ _ __ _ 

Financia! Capacity 
Project Budget from all sources : $ Are all sources committed? Yes No 

HOME dollars$ 
Do you have funds available for pre-development expenses, capital advances required for 

development, and to cover internal costs until fees are earned? Yes No 

Note additional project information here: 

CtH'ii"(Mt Prnjects which will be underway at the same time: : 

I certi fy that the Longview Housing Authority has the personnel and financial capacity 

to develop this project as noted on these forms : 

Signed ____________________ Agency Director. 

Date 

Developer Staff Capacity 

HO E Program Longview- Kelso HOM E Consortium 13 

Quest ions? Technical Ass istance? Contact Adam Trim ble at 360.442.5092, or by e-mail at: adamt@mylongview.com 

EQUAL tlOUSINO 
OPPORTUN I TY 



Lisi <al ~i Staff and contracted employees who will be involved in this project: 

Name and job title:---------------------------
Full-time or part-time employee (circle or bold one) 
Number weekly hours to be dedicated to this project: _______ _ 
(II new si"alf member under 1 year attach resume, or experience, skill or training of tasks to be 
fulfilled.) 
I esp01 1sibilities/capacity for project: 

l\larne and job title: ----------------------------
Ful l-tii·ne or part-time employee (circle or bold one) 
Number weekly hours to be dedicated to this project: _______ _ 
(If new staff member under 1 year attach resume, or experience, skill or training of tasks to be 
fulfilled.) 
l=<espc), 1sib ili-cies/capacity for project: 

l\!ame and job title:---------------------------
Full-time or part-time employee (circle or bold one) 
Number weekly hours to be dedicated to this project: _______ _ 
(If new staff member under 1 year attach resume, or experience, skill or training of tasks to be 
fulfilled.) 
Responsibilities/capacity for project: 

l\larne and job title: ----------------------------
Full-time or part-time employee (circle or bold one) 
Number weekly hours to be dedicated to this project: _______ _ 
(If new staff member under 1 year attach resume, or experience, skill or training of tasks to be 
fulfilled.) 
l={esponsibil ities/capacity for project: 

Complete additional staff sheets as needed. 

~ nstn~N;tions & A.pp~ication Process 

HOME Program Longview- Kelso HOME Consortium 14 

Questions? Technical Assistance? Contact Adam Trimble at 360.442.5092, or by e-mail at: adamt@mylongview.com 

fOUAL HOUSltlO 
OPPORTUN ITY 



Designing Projects 
The Cli'des of Longview and Kelso appreciate your interest and participation in the HOME 

:Prognm. Please follow these guidelines and requirements when proposing projects: 

1. READ the 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan to develop annual projects. The Plan can be accessed 

on .. he City of Longview Website at www.mylongivew.com under the Community Development 

Department HOME Program scrolling down to "Important Links." 

2. Use the 5-year Objectives, Accomplishments and Outcomes to develop projects. 

\1eet the proposed accomplishments and outcomes 
3. Review Underwriting Policies and Procedures. 

4. It is strongly urged that your project be discussed in detail with HOME staff prior to design and 

submittal. Application completeness will be reviewed after submittal for possible 
.=tclclitions/corrections. 

5. 0 rojects using other funding sources must show documentation through funding commitment 

.etters. No HOME funding will be released without full project funding in place. 

6. ?rojects which will not be substantially underway to drawdown funds by July 2017 may be 

1eob!igated by December 2017. 

7. Agencies or individuals must start construction within 12 months of their HOME contract date or 

funding will be deobligated. Projects not completed within 3 years of the dated contract will 

have remaining HOME funding deobligated. Projects which cannot show a verified HOME 

accomplishment based upon their Project Design at the end of their contract date must return all 

HOME money spent to the Kelso-Longview Consortium. -

8. If contractors are to be hired, an affirmative effort must be made to market to Minority and 

Women Owned Businesses I Providers. 

9. A 1 paid labor must adhere to HOME Davis/Bacon federal wage rules or meet state prevailing 

wage guidelines, whichever is higher in projects involving 12 or more housing units. 

10. If rental property is involved, a "HUD Marketing Plan" must accompany your request, showing 

how you will be able to compete for market share; and" HOME Proforma" and still maintain 

affordable rents per HUD guidelines. 

11 . Your project must be in compliance with all federal guidelines pertaining to environmental 

hazards (e.g. asbestos, lead-based paint, soil contaminants, etc), public notices, reporting 

i'equirements, fair housing practices, and any other public regulations. 

Projecl Prnposals are usually due March 151 of each year. 

HOME Program Longv iew- Kelso HOM E Consortium 15 

Quest ions? Techn ical Assistance? Contact Adam Trimble at 360.442.5092, or by e-mail at: adamt@mylongview.com 

EQUAL HOUSJHO 
OPPORTUN ITY 



D Please submit 1 copy of the Project Design Form, Project Timeline, Budget and Additional 

Attachments by June 8, 2916, 3 :00 pm to : 

Adam Trimble 
Community Development Department 
.wongview City Hall 
l 525 Broadway 
Longview, WA 

D Afreir gfaff weview, you will be asked to make 13 copies of your entire application packet for the 
City Council Public Hearing. 

Pub~ ic: Presentation of your Project Design Proposal 

Longview P!lojects: 
You mt y be a§ked to present your proposal to the Longview City Council, Longview City Hall in a 
PubRic .Hiearing on tine Thursday, May 26, 2016. 

Kelso p,·ojects: 
You wU be asked to present your proposal to the Kelso City Council, Kelso City Hall in a Public 
Her.rnH~ Jii111e 2:1, 2016 

Pubi ic Review of all projects is available at least one week prior to the public hearings. 

Que:Sit:ftons?? Technical Ass istance?? 
Contact Adam Trimble 360.442.5092 
11? AX: 360.442.5953. 
E-maill: a dam. trim ble@ci.longview. wa. us 
Checkout our website at : http://www.mylongview.com/index.aspx?page=498 

T hi(: CHy of Longview is the lead agency for the Longview - Kelso HOME Consortium. 

HOME Program Longview- Kelso HOME Consortium 16 
Questions? Technical Ass istance? Contact Adam Trimble at 360.442.5092, or by e-mai l at: adamt@mylongview,com 

EOUA, L HOUSINQ 
OP P ORT UNI TY 



Additional Budget Page for Kelso HOME Application 

Administrative cost includes: project management, housing coordination, selection 

screening, outcomes reporting, etc. 

$3,600 

Rental Assistance includes : application fees , first and last month's deposit, utility 

deposit, security deposit, rental subsidy 

$36,400 

Intensive case management/ housing retention services provided by Community 

House on Broadway staff 

$10,000 

HOME Request 

CHOB contribution 

Grand Total 

$40,000 

$10,000 

$50,000 



Longview/Kelso Home Consortium ___ _ 

Exhibii: B - PROJECT BUDGET AND FUNDING SOURCES 

Lv/Kelso 
Home CHOB 

Source 1 (committed) Source 3 Source 4 Source 5 Total Cost 

How costs 
determined 
(bid, est.) 

Commitment Dates 2016 10/1/2016 
~ .... ..... ~ ~--u.~~-=n•~··~· ·~~----~-~---------------------------f ACQUISITION 
Purchase Pi-ice - Land 
Purchase Price - Bldg. 
Transaction Taxes 
Closing/R;:;1.;ur .ing Fees 

1 
Title lnsur---:ce/Binder Fees I 
~pp ra i sa l 

Other: r 
Subtota l 

1 

Engineerins 
Legal Fees 
Environmental Review 
'p£econstrL'.;:tion Inspection 
Other: 

Subtotal 

Infrastructure on site 
Energy Related lmprovemts 
Repair/Rep 1-::ce Major Syst. 
Lead B2se:. P:i nt /Haz Mat 
Access l'o 1· Disabled 
Securing of Builidng 
Demol it ion 

I 

- - - I 

~ity Connections _ 
Permirn & Fees 

-· 

Construccion Loan Fees 
gonstructio.1 I nspect i~ns _ 
Sales Tcix 
lns uranc~/Bond/Surety Fees 
Contingency _ 
Other: 

Subtotal 
OTHER 
Home ~yer Co_tJn~eling _ 
Credi!__ Repo_r!_ F_e_es __ . -· _ 
Operating Deficit Reserves 
Relocation Costs 

-
Loan Fees 
Tenant Rental Assistance 
Affi rmative i\/l ark~tif1_9__ _ 
f>_i::oject Managemen!._ 
Developer Fees 
Case Management _ 
Other: 

0.00 0.00 

I 
I - -

o.oo l 

---

0.00 

-

·-- -- - -

------·-

- -·------

0.00 0.00 

36,400 

3,600 

10,000 

Subtota l 40,000 .00 1~0Q_O.OO 
- - - ---

HOME TOT AL $40,000.00 $10,000.00 
Date: 6/7/201 6 
Sponsor: 

$0.0Q_ _____ , 
__ --------· __ 1 __ ~$0_.0_0 1 ____ , 

$0.00 
--- 1------1-------1----~--1------t 

$0.00 - 1-----1------ -
$0.00 

--· ------- --·l----'--- --1-----1 

$0.00 
$0.00 

- - - -- ·---- -- - - ------1-------
0.00 0.00 0.00 $0.00 

.. ' 

$0.00 - 1---------- ---1--------~--1-----1 

$0.00 
-----·- ---- ·----·-- ---l------'--- 1-----1 

$0.00 
-·-------~·-----1-----1 

$0.00 
6Jlo - --·o.oo --- - o.oo $0.00 

·, 

$0.00 
$0.00 

- - -- ---- - - --- ----l----'--- 1-----1 

$0.00 
$0 .00 
$0.00 --1-----1-------·--·----l-----I 
$0.00 

--+---~--l---·--

$0.00 
.. -------1------1---~--1------1 

$0.00 - -----~-- -- - - -1----~-1------1 

- ---1-------t---· 

$0.00 
----- -- ---·--'----·1------1 

$0.00 
$0.00 

------- ---1------1•-----1 
$0.00 1-------- - - ·------1-----1 
$0.00 
$0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

1-----1-----
$0.00 
$0.00 

- --------- - - l·--- ---1-----1 

$0.00 ---·· - -- --- --1------~-1--------

-- -· ---1------- ----- l---~$_0_. 0_0_1 _____ 1 

$36,400.00 
-------1 

$0.00 
- - - - -- -- --1;-------1--·---1 

$3,600.00 
-- - -----~--1------1 

$0.00 
-------1 

$10,000.00 
$0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 $50,000 .00 ----
----1---- --1-------1-- ----

$0.00 - - - $0.00 - - $0.00 _ $50,000.00 1----1 

-------- - ----
Project Address: 1105 Broadway/PO Box 403, Longview, WA 98632 



CORE HEALTH 

4/21/2016 

To whom it may concern, 

CORE Health 
Community Mental Health & Recovery 
P.O. Box 2394 
748 141

h Avenue 
Longview, WA 98632 
(360) 200-5419 
Frank Morrison, Executive Director 

CORE Health is willing and eager to participate in the "Home Program for Affordable Housing" 
Grant in collaboration with Community House. 

CORE Health offers comprehensive outpatient mental health services to the residents of Cowlitz 
County and could greatly impact the recovery of the clients this grant would serve. 

Sincerely, ~ 

Cameron Carson 
Operations Manager 

Community House on Broadway OBA CORE Health ~~ 
~ 

Community House 
Longv i e w 



1330 ll'h Avenue 
Longview, WA 98632 

www.esshelter.com 

6-8-16 

Emergency Support Shelter 
* . . * . * sup port 11ahdat1on safety hope 

To Whom it May Concern, 

360-425-1176 
Fax 360-425-3970 

Emergency Support Shelter provides emergency shelter for over 240 households each 
yea r. The individuals and families that we serve are fleeing domestic violence situations 
in their homes and come to our shelter for safety and a chance to start new lives free 
from violence. 

Emergency Support Shelter participates in the community coordinated entry system to 
access rental assistance for eligible clients. Approximately 70 households qualify for 
assistance through that resource in a year. 

That leaves a sign ificant gap of 170 households per year of individuals and families that 
cou ld qualify for assistance with rents, deposits or utility deposits/arrears who are unable 
to access assistance. If Community House were to offer assistance in those areas we 
would be interested in participating in that resource for our clients. 

If you have any questions or would like additional information, I can be reached at 360-
353 .. 5777 ext. 17 or by email at sherriet@cascadenetworks.net. 

Sincere ly, 
I 
'I}\. I _. l l . l [f ' 

I 

II , 
f 
{i r7lr' 

Sherrie Tinoco 
Executive Director 































































































AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:    
Award Contract for: 
2016 Talley Way Overlay Ph. II 
Project #581602 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
Michael Kardas, P.E. 
Community Development Director / City Engineer

Agenda Item:   
 
Dept. of Origin: Com Dev/Engineering  
 
For Agenda of: June 21, 2016   
 
Cost of Item: $254,760.00   
 
City Manager:  Steve Taylor   
 

 

AGENDA ITEM ATTACHEMENTS:    
 
Bid Tabulation 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
The Talley Way Overlay Ph. II project provides for an asphalt pavement overlay for 3,650’ of Talley Way, from 
the terminus of the 2015 overlay project at Parrott Way to the north side of the Coweeman River bridge. The 
major work elements include 2,050 square yards of pavement planing, 2,905 tons of hot mix asphalt for 
pavement repair, preleveling, overlay and driveway approaches, and 165 tons of crushed rock for shoulder 
finishing. 
 
Two (2) bids were received for this project ranging from a high bid of $378,378.00 to the low bid of 
$254,760.00. After reference checks, Lakeside Industries, Inc. submitted the qualified low bid of $254,760.00. 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
This project is fully funded from the Citywide Pavement Preservation budget item of the Arterial Street Fund. 
The qualified low bid is $61,910.00 below the Engineer’s Estimate of $316,670.00.  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Staff recommends that the City Council award the project to the lowest qualified bidder, Lakeside Industries, 
Inc. in the amount of $254,760.00.  



BID TABULATION
Talley Way Overlay Ph II
Project #581602
June 10, 2016

Item Unit Total Unit Total Unit Total

No. Description Quantity Unit Price Amount Price Amount Price Amount

1 Mobilization 1 LS 10,000.00$ 10,000.00$ 26,478.00$ 26,478.00$ 11,000.00$ 11,000.00$

2 Project Temporary Traffic Control 1 LS 10,000.00$ 10,000.00$ 20,000.00$ 20,000.00$ 6,600.00$ 6,600.00$

3 Flaggers 200 HR 60.00$ 12,000.00$ 60.00$ 12,000.00$ 53.00$ 10,600.00$

4 RP & Reset Existing Surface Monuments 2 EA 375.00$ 750.00$ 400.00$ 800.00$ 165.00$ 330.00$

5 Adjust Water Valve Can & Cover 1 EA 400.00$ 400.00$ 400.00$ 400.00$ 165.00$ 165.00$

6 Planing Bituminous Pavement 2,050 SY 3.50$ 7,175.00$ 9.00$ 18,450.00$ 4.50$ 9,225.00$

7 Pavement Repair Excavation Incl. Haul 510 SY 7.00$ 3,570.00$ 45.00$ 22,950.00$ 1.00$ 510.00$

8 HMA for Preleveling, CL. 3/8", PG 64-22 175 TON 90.00$ 15,750.00$ 120.00$ 21,000.00$ 75.00$ 13,125.00$

9 HMA CL. 1/2", PG 64-22 2,350 TON 80.00$ 188,000.00$ 81.00$ 190,350.00$ 66.00$ 155,100.00$

10 HMA for Approach, Cl. 1/2", PG 64-22 200 TON 135.00$ 27,000.00$ 120.00$ 24,000.00$ 100.00$ 20,000.00$

11 HMA for Pavement Repair Cl 1/2", PG 64-22 180 TON 150.00$ 27,000.00$ 120.00$ 21,600.00$ 100.00$ 18,000.00$

12 Shoulder Finishing 165 TON 20.00$ 3,300.00$ 95.00$ 15,675.00$ 30.00$ 4,950.00$

13 Paint Line 10,950 LF 0.75$ 8,212.50$ 0.25$ 2,737.50$ 0.40$ 4,380.00$

14
Temporary Pavement Marking - Short
Duration

3,750 LF 0.75$ 2,812.50$ 0.25$ 937.50$ 0.18$ 675.00$

15 Erosion Control 1 LS 700.00$ 700.00$ 1,000.00$ 1,000.00$ 100.00$ 100.00$

TOTAL: 316,670.00$ 378,378.00$ 254,760.00$

Granite Construction CompanyENGINEER'S ESTIMATE Lakeside Industries

Page 1 of 1



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:    
Award Contract for: 
Yew Street Improvements 
Project #580702 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
Michael Kardas, P.E. 
Community Development Director / City Engineer

Agenda Item:   
 
Dept. of Origin: Com Dev/Engineering  
 
For Agenda of: June 21, 2016   
 
Cost of Item: (to be determined at bid opening)   
 
City Manager:  Steve Taylor   
 

 

AGENDA ITEM ATTACHEMENTS:    
 
Bid Tabulation to be provided at Council meeting. 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
The Yew Street Improvements project provides for reconstruction of 1,300’ of Yew Street, from Pacific Way to 
S. 7th Avenue. This project also includes construction of 1,900’ of off-site stormwater sewer on S. 7th 
Avenue/Walnut Street for a stormwater outlet. The major work elements include 5,680 cubic yards of roadway 
excavation, 4,050 tons of crushed rock, 2,435 tons of hot mix asphalt, 2,550’ of curb, 1,080 square yards of 
sidewalk, 21 curb ramps, stormwater rain gardens with plantings for treatment of the stormwater runoff, and 
3,260’ of stormwater pipe. 
 
Bids were received for this project on Friday, June 17, 2016. Information regarding the bids received will be 
provided at the Council meeting.  
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
This project will be funded by the 2016 General Obligation bond sales. The Engineer’s Estimate is $1,507,960.  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Following review of the bids and determination of the lowest responsible bidder, staff will provide a bid award 
recommendation at the Council meeting.  



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:    
Construction Engineering and Inspection  
Services for Yew Street Improvements 
Project #580702 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
Michael Kardas, P.E. 
Community Development Director / City Engineer

Agenda Item:   
 
Dept. of Origin: Com Dev/Engineering  
 
For Agenda of: June 21, 2016   
 
Cost of Item: $151,099.00   
 
City Manager:  Steve Taylor   
 

 

AGENDA ITEM ATTACHEMENTS:    
 
Professional Services Agreement for construction engineering and inspection services during construction of the 
Yew Street Improvements project. 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
The Yew Street Improvements project provides for reconstruction of 1,300’ of Yew Street, from Pacific Way to 
S. 7th Avenue. This project also includes construction of 1,900’ of off-site stormwater sewer on S. 7th 
Avenue/Walnut Street for a stormwater outlet. The major work elements include 5,680 cubic yards of roadway 
excavation, 4,050 tons of crushed rock, 2,435 tons of hot mix asphalt, 2,550’ of curb, 1,080 square yards of 
sidewalk, 21 curb ramps, stormwater rain gardens with plantings for treatment of the stormwater runoff, and 
3,260’ of stormwater pipe. 
 
Engineering services are required during construction of this project, including inspection, materials testing, and 
evaluation of groundwater conditions. Through a competitive evaluation process Otak, Inc. was selected as the 
firm most qualified to provide these services for this project.  
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
This work is funded by the 2016 General Obligation bond sales. The estimated fee for this work is $151,099.00.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Authroize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Otak, Inc. to provide engineering services during 
construction of the Yew Street Improvements Project.  









































AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:    
 
Award Contract for Talley Way Perimeter Fence 
and Rotating Beacon Replacement 
Projects: 571501/571502 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
Michael Kardas, PE 
Community Development Director/City Engineer 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Dept. of Origin: Engineering Department  
 
For Agenda of: June 21, 2016   
 
Cost of Item: $297,442.80   
 
City Manager:  Steve Taylor   
 

 

AGENDA ITEM ATTACHEMENTS:    
 
Bid Tabulation 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
This work consists of construction of 2000 linear feet of perimeter fence, including a new electric access gate 
(including pavement rehabilitation), as well as, the demolition and replacement of the rotating beacon tower. 
 
Three contractors submitted bid responses for this work ranging from the low of $297,442.80 to a high of 
$325,428.56. After reference checks and review by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), PCR Inc. of 
Beaver Creek, Oregon was determined to have the lowest responsible bid.  
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
The amount bid for this project is $62,110.80 above the Engineer’s Estimate of $235,332.00.  This project is 
funded by a 90% FAA Grant, 5% WSDOT Grant, and a 5% local Airport Match. The outside funding agencies 
have reviewed and approved the higher contract amount.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Staff recommends that the City Council make a motion to award the above-referenced project to the lowest 
bidder, PCR, Inc and authorize the City Manager to execute the construction contract in the amount of 
$297,442.80 upon the release of funding by FAA. .  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Engineer's Estimate

PCR, Inc. Five Rivers Construction, 

Inc.

JH Kelly, LLC

BID SUMMARY

Engineer's Estimate

Qty Unit Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

1 A-01 22 00 Mobilization 1 LS 20,000.00 20,000.00 27,000.00 27,000.00 28,000.00 28,000.00 7,340.00 7,340.00

2 A-01 22 00 Construction Survey 1 LS 5,000.00 5,000.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 20,551.00 20,551.00

3 A-01 35 00 Trench Excavation Safety 1 LS 1,500.00 1,500.00 10.00 10.00 250.00 250.00 931.00 931.00

4 A-01 35 00 Utility Locate 1 LS 3,000.00 3,000.00 400.00 400.00 800.00 800.00 734.00 734.00

5 A-01 35 00 FOD Prevention 1 LS 2,000.00 2,000.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 3,641.00 3,641.00

6 A-01 35 13 Traffic Control 1 LS 6,000.00 6,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 13,000.00 13,000.00 3,817.00 3,817.00

7
A-01 45 00

Contractor Quality Control/ Acceptance 

Testing 1 LS 5,000.00 5,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 26,423.00 26,423.00

8 P-156 Temporary Gravel Access Road 1 EA 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 1,615.00 1,615.00

9 P-156 Construction Entrance 1 EA 3,000.00 3,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 2,642.00 2,642.00

10 P-156 Straw Wattles 100 LF 4.00 400.00 3.00 300.00 9.00 900.00 17.62 1,762.00

11 P-156 Silt Fence 200 LF 5.00 1,000.00 4.00 800.00 4.00 800.00 17.62 3,524.00

12 F-162 Chain-Link Fence 2000 LF 30.00 60,000.00 28.00 56,000.00 46.00 92,000.00 49.18 98,360.00

13 F-162 Vehicle Gates 3 EA 8,000.00 24,000.00 1,800.00 5,400.00 2,100.00 6,300.00 2,787.00 8,361.00

14 P-32 01 00 Electric Gate Driveway Rehabilitation 300 SY 100.00 30,000.00 45.00 13,500.00 61.08 18,324.00 39.63 11,889.00

15 T-901 Seeding 1 AC 3,000.00 3,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 4,400.00 4,400.00 c 2,936.00 2,936.00

16 L-101 Airport Rotating Beacon Demolition 1 EA 500.00 500.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,750.00 2,750.00 919.00 919.00

17
L-101 Airport Rotating Beacon Construction

1 EA 7,000.00 7,000.00 16,000.00 16,000.00 16,055.00 16,055.00 48,290.00 48,290.00

18
L-103

Beacon Tower and Foundation 

Demolition 1 EA 4,000.00 4,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 5,120.00 5,120.00 18,731.00 18,731.00

19
L-103

Beacon Tower and Foundation 

Construction 1 EA 24,500.00 24,500.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 48,390.00 48,390.00 21,097.00 21,097.00

20 L-26 00 51 Panelboard Replacement 1 EA 6,500.00 6,500.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 2,140.00 2,140.00 2,865.00 2,865.00

21 L-32 31 14 Gate Automation 1 EA 8,500.00 8,500.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 14,600.00 14,600.00 14,904.00 14,904.00

Total Basic Bid 217,900.00 275,410.00 277,329.00 301,332.00

Plus Sales Tax (8.0%) 17,432.00 a 22,032.80 22,186.32 24,106.56

Total Basic Bid Plus Sales Tax 235,332.00 b 297,442.80 299,515.32 325,438.56

Notes

a Amount on 00 04 10 shows sales tax as $22,033

b Amount on 00 04 10 shows total bid as $297,443

c Unit price on 00 04 10 shows $2636.00

Basic Bid:  Talley Way Perimeter Fence and Rotating 

Beacon Replacement

325,438.56297,442.80235,332.00 299,515.32Total Basic Bid

PCR, Inc. Five Rivers Construction, 

Inc.

JH Kelly, LLC

City of Kelso, Talley Way Perimeter Fence and Rotating Beacon Replacement

BID TABULATION

May 4, 2016; 3 p.m.

Total PriceTotal PriceTotal PriceTotal Price

5/5/2016 1 of 1 23\06\005\bid phase



 
AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:    
 
Acceptance of  Drinking Water State Revolving 
Fund Loan for Minor Road and S. Kelso 
Transmission Main 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY: 
 
Michael Kardas, PE 
Community Development Director 
City Engineer 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: Community Development 
Engineering 
 
For Agenda of: June 21, 2016   
 
Cost of Item: Varies from $295,000 to $230,000 
 
City Manager: Steve Taylor__________________ 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM ATTACHMENTS:    
 
Public Works Board Letter- Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan Contract  
Amortization Schedule 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
The City was successful in qulaifiying for a Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Loan in the 
amount $4,529,850 to fund a major portion of the Minor Road Reservoir Replacment and South Kelso Drive 
Water Transmission Pipeline projects. Environmental review is complete and the State Department of 
Commerce has provided the City with the contract documents for execution.  
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
The total loan amount is $4,529,850, the loan term is 20 years and the interest rate is 1.5%. Annual payments 
ranging from a first year payment of $294,440.25 to a final payment of $229,889.89.  The repayment will be 
funded from water utility within the currently approved rate structure.  
 
This loan is approximately 70% of the overall  $6.5 million project budget. The remaining monies come from a 
$1,455,000 state appropriation grant and $500,000 from the City’s Water Capital Fund. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Motion to accept the DWSRF loan in the amount of $4,529,850 and authorize the City Manager to execute the 
DWSRF loan contract.   















 
AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Business of the City of Kelso 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:    

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF 
KELSO, WASHINGTON, DECLARING 
CITY OWNED PROPERTY, PARCELS 
24337 AND 24334 AS SURPLUS AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
CONVEY SUCH PARCELS TO THE DAVIS 
TERRACE WATER ASSOCIATION 

 
PRESENTED BY:   
Janean Parker 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: ____Legal__________________ 
 
For Agenda of: ____June, 21, 2016____________ 
 
Cost of Item:   
 
City Manager:  Stephen Taylor   
 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM ATTACHMENTS:    
Proposed Resolution  
Map of Property 
Assessor’s Parcel Search 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
The City has been negotiating an agreement for the purchase and sale of water with the Davis Terrace 
Water Assocation (DTWA).  The DTWA owns a reservoir on City owned property.  The City has not 
been able to establish an easement or other documentation authorizing use of the property.  The DTWA 
would like to own the underlying property on which the reservoir is located and the City has no other 
uses for that property.  The City would also reduce its liability exposure by disposing of the property. 
RCW 35.94.040 requires a resolution surplussing the property and a public hearing and a statement of 
the fair market value or consideration to be paid for any property originally acquired for utitlity 
purposes.  Staff has researched the assessed value of the parcels from the Cowlitz County Assessor and 
determined that $2,300.00 is a reasonable fair market value for the property.   
 
Upon approval of this surplus resolution, the City staff will prepare an ordinance conveying the property 
(required by the City Charter) and will finalize the water agreement with DTWA for your approval.   
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
Sale price of $2,300. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing 
2. Grant DTWA an easement for their use of the property  
3. Surplus and sell the property to DTWA 

 
 
 



RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Move to approve the Resolution declaring city owned property surplus and authorizing its conveyance to the 
Davis Terrace Water Assocation.  



RESOLUTION NO.  __________ 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF KELSO, WASHINGTON, 
DECLARING CITY OWNED PROPERTY, PARCELS 24337 AND 
24334 AS SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO CONVEY SUCH PARCELS TO THE DAVIS TERRACE WATER 
ASSOCIATION 
 

WHEREAS, the City owns Parcel No. 24337 and Parcel No. 24334, legally 

described below, in Kelso, Washington; and 

WHEREAS, the Davis Terrace Water Association (the “DTWA”) is a water 

district that provides water to residences in both the City and unincorporated Cowlitz 

County; and  

WHEREAS, the DTWA owns a 60,000 gallon reservoir located on the real 

property described below together with the water system to serve its customers, which 

reservoir and water system connects to the City water system at Coweeman and Grade 

Streets; and 

WHEREAS, the DTWA has purchased water from the City since at least 1951 

and the City and the DTWA have been negotiating a revised agreement for the continued 

purchase and sale of water; and  

WHEREAS, the property described below is necessary to the DTWA’s continued 

use and operation of its water system and the City has not used and has no plans to use 

this property for any other public purpose; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on the matter and took 

testimony on June 21, 2016; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 35.94.040, the City has determined that the fair 

market value of the property as encumbered in $2,300.00 



WHEREAS, the City finds that it is in the public interest to surplus the property 

and to convey the property to the DTWA for consideration in the amount of $2,300, for 

the continued use and operation of their water system. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KELSO DO 

HEREBY RESOLVE: 

 
   SECTION 1.  Findings of Fact.  Each and every of the recitals contained in the 

‘whereas’ clauses of the preamble to this ordinance are hereby adopted as findings of fact 

and incorporated herein fully by reference. 

SECTION 2.  Legal Description.  The City owns the following described real 

property, hereinafter “the Property,” situated in the City of Kelso, Cowlitz County 

Washington: 

1.  Cowlitz County Parcel No. 24337. 

BEGINNING AT THE WEST QUARTER CORNER SECTION 36, 
TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST OF THE W.M., SAID POINT 
BEING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
OF SAID SECTION; THENSE ALONG THE SECTION LINE NORTH 
286.59 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE DESCRIPTION; 
THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID SECTION LINE 100.00 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 89 DEGREES 11 ½ ‘ EAST PARALLEL TO THE EAST AND 
WEST CENTER LINE OF SAID SECTION, A DISTANCE OF 100.00 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH PARALLEL TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID 
SECTION THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 11 ½ ‘ WEST 100.00 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 

2. Cowlitz County Parcel No. 24334.  

BEGINNING AT THE EAST QUARTER CORNER OF SECTION 35, 
TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST, WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN; 
THENCE NORTH 2ᵒ14’44” EAST, 332.61 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
87ᵒ55’16” WEST, 64.49 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE NORTH 87ᵒ55’16” WEST, 119.63 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE 
ARC OF A NONTANGENT, 220.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE 
LEFT, 66.59 FEET THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 17ᵒ20’28”, THE 



CHORD OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 79ᵒ15’02” WEST, 66.33 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 87ᵒ55’16” WEST, 628.81 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE 
ARC OF A TANGENT 430.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT 
117.49 FEET THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGEL OF 15ᵒ39’20”, THE 
CHORD OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 80ᵒ05’36” WEST, 117.13 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 01ᵒ45’54” EAST, 54.05 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
83ᵒ00’29” EAST, 116.76 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 87ᵒ55’16” EAST, 628.81 
FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF A TANGENT 280.00 FOOT 
RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT 202.37 FEET, THROUGH A CENTRAL 
ANGLE OF 41ᵒ24’34”, THE CHORD OF WHICH BEARS SOUTH 
67ᵒ12’59” EAST, 197.99 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

SECTION 3.  Surplus Declaration.   The Property, described in Section 2 above, 

is declared surplus to the needs of the City. 

 SECTION 4.   City Manager Authority.  The City Manager is directed to convey 

the Property described in Section 2 above to the DTWA upon payment of $2,300.00 

consideration and is authorized to take all steps necessary and incidental to 

accomplishing this conveyance. 

 SECTION 5.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately.  

  

ADOPTED by the City Council and SIGNED by the Mayor this _____ day of 

______________________, 2016. 

 
      ____________________________________ 
      MAYOR 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATION: 
 
_____________________________ 
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 








	1. - 2016-06-21
	1.1. - 2016-06-07
	2.1. - Pub Hear Surplus of Property
	2.2. - Ag Sum 016 HOME Allocations Public Hearing
	2.2.1. - CAP Kelso 2016
	2.2.2. - CHOB Kelso 2016
	2.2.3. - FFC Kelso 2016
	2.2.4. - KHA Kelso 2016
	5.1. - AgSu Talley Way Overlay Ph II Bid Award 06-21-2016
	5.1.1. - Talley Way Bid Tab 2016-06-10
	5.2. - AgSu Yew St Reconstruction Bid Award 06-21-2016 REV
	5.3. - AgSu Yew St Inspection Services
	5.3.1. - PSA-Yew St Const Eng Services
	5.4. - AgSu Award Bid - PCR Inc -Airport Fence-Beacon
	5.4.1. - Kelso Fence-Beacon Bid Tabulation
	5.5. - AgSu DWSRF Loan Acceptance - Minor Rd Res-S. Kelso Drive 06212016
	5.5.1. - DWSRF Letter
	5.5.2. - 2016 DWSRF Amortization Schedlue
	6.1. - Ag Sum - Resolution DTWA Surplus property
	6.1.1. - Res - DTWA surplus of property 6-21-16
	6.1.2. - Parcel Search-Map 24334 24337



